
Cleveland Animal Shelter Advisory Board

Adjourned Session Meeting Minutes
December 2, 2015

Opening:

The meeting of the Cleveland Animal Shelter Advisory Board was called to order at 1:25 PM on December 2, 2015 in the 
City Council Room of the Municipal Building by Dr. Sally Poston.

Present:
Dr. Sally Poston; Dr. James Lane; George Poe

Absent:
Jill Barrett; Kathy Kinder

A. Approval of Minutes

Dr. James Lane motioned to approve the minutes as written. George Poe seconded. All approved.

B. Director’s Report

1) Director Gene Smith handed out packets containing the Animal Control Monthly Reports.

2) Dr. Poston asked if it would be possible to get medical records for adopted animals if they were owner 
surrendered. Animal Control Records Clerk Jennifer Rogers stated that sometimes people bring them in and 
sometimes they don’t. Dr. Poston said that even if they could get the previous owner’s name and what vet 
clinic they went to, they could call and find out what had been done. She just thought it could possibly prevent 
an unnecessary surgery if the animal had already been spayed or giving more vaccines if the animal had 
already been vaccinated. Director Smith said on the In Tickets when they are checked in they are asked if it has
been altered or not and it is marked, but they hardly ever bring records. Dr. Poston said that if the name that it 
would be under at the Vet and the animal’s name then they could call. Director Smith said that information 
could try to be obtained. Dr. Poston stated that it was just better medicine to have the history if possible. It 
could also potentially save the adopter money by not doing tests that have already been performed.

3) The vacant Officer position has been filled by Macy White. She is still in training. She has completed her six 
weeks in the kennel and is doing real well. She has a great personality and loves animals. City Manager Janice 
Casteel said that they were initially holding off on filling the position because at the time they were meeting 
with the County and trying to determine the future, but now we are just moving ahead.

C. Old Business

1) Dr. Poston recognized that the individual who wanted to have pigs in the City limits was not in attendance at 
the meeting, so the board would postpone further discussion.

2) Dr. Poston also brought up that since Animal Control services were not going to be combined with the County 
at this time would it be possible to hold meeting every third month. Director Smith said that he did not see a 
problem with it and if something came up that a meeting needed to be held, a special called meeting could be 
called. Dr. Lane made a motion that the Animal Shelter Board start having meetings every third month 
(quarterly). George Poe seconded. All approved.

D. New Business

1)  Jeanine Warren addressed the Board regarding the transport of dogs to northern shelters. They have been 
working with Go North Transport Collaborative, which is a 501c3 rescue out of Knoxville that has been 
operating since 2012. They take van loads of animals to northern shelters, not rescues, but actually shelters. 
They are under capacity shelters that are vet staffed on the premises and spay or neuter all animals before they 
are adopted. They wanted to get an ok from the board to get the animals ready to go on the transport while they



are in the shelter. They have taken approximately 13 dogs from Animal Control and most of them have been 
boarded for a few days while they were getting vaccinated and getting ready for the transport. It would be a lot 
cheaper and easier in some ways to do it while they are at the shelter. Dr. Poston asked who did the health 
certificates for them. Mrs. Warren said that Keith Street Animal Clinic did them. Dr. Poston stated that the 
requirements for Maine and New York and some of those places are extremely strict and she suggested 
educating themselves online of the rules so they wouldn’t get to the border and then they need more because 
they require more deworming. Mrs. Warren said that Go North was the experts on getting them up there and 
they work out the details and give them the destination shelters. They submit the animals to them and they 
submit them to the shelters and they say which ones they will take. Sally Little addressed the Board regarding 
the welfare of the animals and asked what sort of vetting process there was to make someone feel comfortable 
that people indeed in the North need these animals. She also addressed the concern in social media and other 
places that these animals may end up in laboratories up North when they leave Bradley County. Dr. Poston 
addressed the laboratory stating that if it is a valid laboratory, they are not getting their animals from the 
shelters. She said she had worked in laboratories that have done research and they are required by law to 
purchase animals. Dr. Poston felt it seems to be fairly well organized and there has to be some trust that they 
are truly going from this shelter to that shelter and that there is a need and that shelter is as well organized as 
Gene is and they say they can only handle a certain number of the animals. Ms. Little just asked for continued 
diligence on the part of the Board that once they leave Bradley County that there is still some responsibility 
that their outcome is as best as could be hoped for. Gene requested that the information on what shelter the 
animal goes to be provided so it can be put with the pull papers. Dr. Poston also said they need to be spayed 
and neutered as well, whether it is done here or there. Gene said that if they are pulled under Dixie, then 
Jeanine is sort of pulling it under her name as well, so it should be Jeanine’s responsibility to show proof that it
has been altered at that shelter and she says she can do that and email the verification to him or Jennifer and we
can put it in the records. George Poe made a motion to allow animals to be prepared for transport. Dr. Poston 
seconded. All approved. Mrs. Warren also said that she would prepare something to send to each of the Vets of
what had to be done to see what each one would charge for those services.

2) The contract for taking animals from Ducktown and Soddy Daisy was discussed. Gene said that the reason he 
wasn’t really for it is because if they are bringing stray animals down here, is it being advertised up there that 
we have someone’s stray animal here. Animal Control did turn away six cats from Ducktown because their 
contract had expired here. The cats were also sick, so the City probably would’ve had to vet them. Dr. Poston 
asked why we even got in a contract with them in the first place. Gene said he thought it was just a neighborly, 
City helping City thing and that it wasn’t a whole lot. However, it was just that at one time Animal Control 
was taking animals from Meigs County and a person’s dog was gotten and it was put to sleep and the owner 
didn’t know it was there. That is the reason why he got away from taking any in from other places. Also, really
it was tax payers’ money footing the bill for other counties when animals were taken in from Polk County, 
Meigs County, so when he became director that was stopped. This was different because they did pay so much 
per animal, but he wasn’t for sure about the medical part and he guessed the City could still get reimbursed for 
that. Board member George Poe asked if their contract was now expired. Gene and Janice told him that it was, 
as well as the contract for Soddy Daisy. Gene said that it was his own personal opinion, but he thought that 
animals should just be taken in from our own city. Dr. Lane asked if he just thought the contract should be let 
to expire. Gene said that it had expired and he would do whatever the City wanted him to do, but to him, it was
getting the animal back to the owner and it’s hard to get an animal back to the owner here, much less up in 
Copperhill. Dr. Poston said that her concern was that now that we are paying for everything that is sick, that 
you are suddenly draining our resources. Gene said that Animal Control is having to run them to the vet. Janice
also stated that at the time this contract was entered in to, we were county wide and now we are City only, so it
makes sense that we would not be assisting other cities or counties. Dr. Poston asked if they needed to make a 
motion and George Poe asked if he was correct that if they did nothing then nothing happened, but they would 
have to make a motion to renew the contract. Janice said that was correct. She also stated that it needed to 
come to the Board so that if Ducktown or Soddy Daisy called then we can say we will not be renewing.

Adjournment:

The meeting was adjourned at 1:55 PM by Dr. Sally Poston. The next general meeting will be at 1:00 PM on April 6, 
2016 in the City Council Room of the Municipal Building.

Minutes submitted by: Jennifer Rogers


